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Agenda Report 

August 15, 2011 

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

THROUGH: Finance Committee 

FROM: Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: FUND BALANCE POLICY 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Approve the attached Fund Balance Policy and, 

2. Approve a resolution modifying the Fund Balance Policy for the General Fund 

BACKGROUND: 

Periodic review of the City fund balance policies is a significant tool for maintaining 
fiscal responsibility and stability of City finances. Prudent fund balances also assist in 
maintaining the City's AAA rating. In 1999, City Council approved the Cash 
Management and Cash Reserve Policy. At that time, past policies and best practices 
were discussed, expanded, updated, and modified to include other funds. Periodically, 
staff brings forward the issue of fund balance/reserves for City Council consideration 
and direction. During the 2008 review, a recommendation was made to increase the 
General Fund reserves to 1 0°/o of budgeted appropriations with the adoption of the 
Fiscal Year 2009 budget. 

In 2009, the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) updated its 
recommended best practices to stipulate that a formal policy establish the level of 
unrestricted fund balance that should be maintained in the General Fund. This policy 
should include a temporal framework and specific plans and trigger points for increasing 
or decreasing the level of unrestricted fund balance when the amount varies from the 
policy. While the adequacy of unrestricted funds in the General Fund should be 
assessed based on the City's own unique circumstances, GFOA recommends that the 
General Fund maintain, at a minimum, no less than two months of operating revenues 
or operating expenditures, depending on which measure is more predictable. This is 
about 16.67 percent of General Fund expenditures. 
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Fund balance policies are designed to focus on the City's ability to meet its short-term 
and long-term obligations. The policies are designed as a plan to assist the City in 
addressing significant swings in cash flows due to economic cycles and unanticipated 
emergencies. 

The City operates over 150 different funds in providing municipal services. The General 
Fund contains the greatest cross-section of municipal services and is the focus of most 
fund balance policies. The additional funds included in the attached fund balance policy 
document were selected due to their significance to City operations and their potential 
to impact the General Fund. 

According to the best practices recommendation, in establishing a policy governing the 
level of unrestricted fund balance in the General Fund, a number of factors should be 
considered, including: 

• The predictability of revenues and expenditures. As numerous revenue sources 
have been impacted by the economic downturn, a larger reserve should be 
considered. 

• The City's perceived exposure to significant one-time or ongoing outlays, such 
as, natural disasters, immediate capital needs, and state budget cuts. 

• The potential drain upon general fund resources from other funds as well as the 
available resources from other funds may require a higher or lower level of 
unrestricted fund balance be maintained. 

• Liquidity (i.e. the disparity between when financial resources actually become 
available to make payments and the average maturity of related liabilities may 
require that a higher level of resources be maintained). 

• Commitments and assignments (i.e., maintenance of higher levels of unrestricted 
fund balance to compensate for any portion of unrestricted fund balance already 
committed or assigned by the City for a specific purpose). 

Pasadena is one of only a few Cities in California to maintain a AAA bond rating. 
Maintenance of this rating is a high priority. In a survey of other California cities with a 
AAA rating, their General Fund unrestricted reserve levels range from 13 to 50 percent. 
The City of Glendale has set their minimum reserve at 30 percent with a target of 50 
percent. Burbank has established a 15 percent working capital reserve and a 5 percent 
emergency reserve. 

On June 27, 2011 City Council took action to establish a Fund Balance Policy for the 
General Fund which complied with GASB Statement No. 54 and formally committed 10 
percent specifically for emergency contingencies. At that time, staff indicated that we 
would return to City Council with additional Fund Balance Policy recommendations for 
the General Fund and other significant funds. 

The attached Fund Balance Policy document provides policy statements that establish 
targeted goals for the General Fund and thirteen other funds. Four significant changes 
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are proposed: increasing the General Fund Emergency Contingency from 10 percent to 
20 percent, maintaining one month of current year appropriations in the Library Fund 
Balance, increasing the Water Fund reserve from one to two months, and gradually 
funding the Annual Required Contribution for the City's Other Post-Employment 
Benefits. 

The stated policy guidelines provide for specific incremental increases when required to 
move funds into or closer to compliance with the targeted fund balance goal each year 
during the budget process. Additionally, each year at a meeting after the presentation 
of City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, a compliance report indicating the 
actual and targeted amounts of each fund will be presented. Every two years, if not 
more frequently, staff will present the Fund Balance Policy to Council for review. 
Attached is a matrix summarizing the current policy, the proposed policy, and an 
explanation of the change for each fund with a stated policy. 

COUNCIL POLICY CONSIDERATION: 

The City Council's strategic planning goal of maintaining fiscal responsibility and 
stability will be advanced through the update of the Fund Balance Policy. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

There is no immediate fiscal impact as a result of this action and it will not have any 
indirect or support cost requirements. The anticipated impact to other operational 
programs or capital projects as a result of this action will be none. While there is no 
immediate fiscal impact of modifying the Fund Balance Policies, there will be fiscal 
impact to future City Budgets. 

Prepared by: 

Robert S. Ridley 
Controller 

Approved by: 

£.~ 
City Manager 

Respectfully submitted, 

Cl!J;J tJ'V~ 
ANDREW GREEN 
Director of Finance 






































